
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2012 
CHINCOTEAGUE TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP 

 
Council Members Present:       
John H. Tarr, Mayor        
Ellen W. Richardson, Vice Mayor 
John H. Howard, Councilman 
Nancy B. Conklin, Councilwoman  
John N. Jester, Jr., Councilman 
Tripp Muth, Councilman 
Terry Howard, Councilman 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Tarr called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION 
Councilman T. Howard offered the invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Tarr led in the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS/DELETIONS AND ADOPTION 
Vice Mayor Richardson motioned, seconded by Councilman T. Howard to adopt the agenda 
adding Public Comment to item #3. Comprehensive Zoning Map Amendment – Resolution of 
Outstanding Issues and under Item #5. Closed Session adding Possible Litigation Concerning the 
Fire Tax.  Unanimously approved. 
 
1. Town Decorative Banner Project - Update 
Public Works Director Spurlock updated Council on the Banner Project.  He stated that with 
much needed input he was prepared to present the artwork for the 20 banners which could cost 
approximately $85 each.  He stated that there are several thoughts for the bottom verbiage on the 
banners.  He asked Council their preference.  He added that every picture selected will be on a 
banner.   
 
Councilman Jester stated he would like to see the word “Ponies” on the bottom of a couple of the 
banners.   
 
Councilman T. Howard feels that there should be one banner reflecting the Beebe Family.   
 
There was further discussion about the verbiage at the bottom of the banners.   
 
Mayor Tarr advised to contact Public Works Director Spurlock with further comments or 
suggestions within the next couple of days. 
 
 
 



2. 911 Dispatch Equipment Update 
Chief Lewis reported that they were contacted by Verizon regarding an upgrade.  He advised that 
the upgrade would cost $80,000.  He also stated that if they do not have the upgrade, Verizon 
will not give the Town a maintenance agreement.  He added that with the $80,000 the first year’s 
maintenance is free and each year after that will cost $15,000.   
 
Mayor Tarr asked how much the Town was currently paying in maintenance and was advised 
$14,000.   
 
There was further discussion and comments.   
 
Town Manager Ritter advised that there is a USDA Grant for this type of expense up to 75% of 
the $80,000 cost.  He asked Council to review this further and decide if they want the upgrade.   
 
Chief Lewis advised he is waiting for the price and this was just an estimate. 
 
Councilman J. Howard asked Chief Lewis what the shortfalls would be if the Town fell under 
Accomack’s 911 Service.   
 
Chief Lewis advised he doesn’t see any shortfalls. 
 
Councilman J. Howard feels they will have to make some cuts. 
 
Chief Lewis believes they would lose 5 part-time dispatchers.   
 
Mayor Tarr added that they would lose the cost for police dispatch.   
 
Town Manager Ritter advised that they will review this matter further in the budget hearings.   
 
There was further discussion and comments and Town Manager Ritter advised there is 
approximately $25,000 in the LGIP for 911 dispatch. 
 
Councilman Jester advised that our dispatchers are doing more than the County’s dispatchers. 
 
Mayor Tarr asked staff to run the numbers with and without 911 before the budget. 
 
3. Comprehensive Zoning Map Amendment – Resolution of Outstanding Issues 

• Public Comment 
Town Planner Neville reported that the Planning Commission wanted to give Council a clear 
recommendation on each of the issues.  He reviewed the issues one at a time. 
 
Issue:

1. Commercial zoning of salt marsh areas. 
A. Adjacent to Maddox Campground 



Recommendation: No change – Maintain a consistent approach in both locations to 
implement the Comprehensive Plan land use or to retain the existing zoning consideration 
of public comment provided.   

 
B. South end of Marsh Island 
Recommendation: No change – Adopt the proposed zoning map as advertised at the 
Town Council public hearing. 

 
He explained the similarities and why the Commission decided no change.  He feels that being 
consistent is the best way to go.   
 
Mayor Tarr asked for clarification.   
 
Town Planner Neville advised that the Commission felt they should stay with the original 
recommendation and maintaining the Residential District on Marsh Island in its entirety. 
 
There was discussion regarding the boat slips and maintaining the current use. 
 
Councilman T. Howard expressed his concern about changing from commercial to residential 
because of the restrictions on each use.   
 
Planning Commission Chairman Rosenberger explained the only comments the Commission 
heard were from the residents of Marsh Island.  He stated that Mr. Tull didn’t comment until 
February 28th, during the public comment period.  
 
Councilman T. Howard feels that people should be able to continue the current use of their 
property.  He doesn’t feel that the Town should take away an allowed use.   
 
There was further discussion. 
 
Chairman Rosenberger stated that all of the residents of Marsh Island that responded were 
unanimously requesting that Marsh Island be zoned R-3.  He added that it seemed consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Town Planner Neville interjected that they spoke about safety and parking issues referring to 
Commercial Use.  He stated that there was concern that there isn’t enough land for parking on 
the commercial property and the commercial parking would be on their drain fields and in the 
roadway.   
 
Council discussed the potential parking issues if this remained commercial.   
 
Councilwoman Conklin asked about access to the commercial property of marshland. 
 
Town Planner Neville asked if the change in zoning would change the land value. 
 



Mayor Tarr advised it would be the same.  He stated that the intent is to get the issues off the 
table.  He asked for public input on issue #1.   
 
• Mr. Eddie Tull addressed his 28 acres on the south side of Marsh Island.  He advised he 
has had offers for this property and there are things that can be done.  He addressed the land 
value.  He informed Council he owns from the old drawbridge to Black Narrows Bridge, which 
is exactly 400 feet.  He is currently having it surveyed.  He also stated that his lawyer advised 
him that the law says you can’t fill it but it doesn’t say you can’t build on it.  He has owned it 
since 1969 and has always been commercial.  He showed a picture of the property and requested 
that his property remain the same.   
 
• Ms. Laurie Walton stated that she has owned a property on Marsh Island for 
approximately 9 years and is in favor of zoning it residential.  She stated that in regards to Mr. 
Tull’s property, the two billboards are in disrepair.  She asked if more billboards could be put if 
it remains commercial.  She mentioned sewerage and septic issues regarding the commercial use 
on marshland.  She stated that the remains from the boat that burnt are still there after many 
years.  She mentioned the potential traffic hazard also.   
 
Town Planner Neville reviewed item 1 (A) and the recommendation from the Planning 
Commission. 
 
There was discussion. 
 
Council agreed to leave marshland zoning to Maddox Campground as it was advertised, as C-4 
Resort Commercial as advertised in the Town Council public hearing. 
 
Mayor Tarr asked to review item 1 (B).   
 
There was discussion and comments. 
 
Councilman T. Howard feels the southern side of Marsh Island should remain the same. 
 
Councilman J. Howard concurs. 
 
Councilman Muth disagrees as the Marsh Island area and use has changed with the new bridge.  
He explained that Mr. Tull’s rights were not taken away and the value has been maintained.   
 
Mayor Tarr asked the pleasure of Council. 
 
Councilman T. Howard motioned, seconded by Councilman J. Howard to go with the alternative 
of leaving the southern side of Marsh Island as C-1 Commercial, changing the rest of Marsh 
Island to R-3 Mixed Use Residential.  Motion carried. 
Ayes: T. Howard, J. Howard, Conklin, Jester, Richardson 
Nays: Muth 
 
 



Issue: 
2. Campground use expansion in the R-4 Resort Residential District 

Recommendation: Revise proposed Sec. 3.10.25 – Adopt the proposed zoning map as 
advertised at the Town Council public hearing and modify the proposed R-4 District 
Regulations in response to public comment as follows: 
 Sec. 3.10.25 – Campgrounds, camper/travel trailer parks. 
 Expansion area for campground or camper/travel trailer parks may be permitted  

if adjacent to an existing campground or camper/trailer park at the time of the 
adoption of this ordinance. 

 
Town Planner Neville explained that the R-4 District only allows Campgrounds by special use 
permits to expand.  The Commission feels that language should be added to the R-4 district 
regarding expansion.  He stated they were trying to stop the domino effect.   
 
There was discussion and further explanation that if someone owns a campground and adjacent 
property, that the adjacent property could be converted by right to expand the campground.  The 
way it is currently written it’s allowed by a special use permit.  Council also discussed the 
choices. 
 
Town Planner Neville also explained Mr. Whitlock’s property and zoning.   
 
Mayor Tarr opened the discussion to the public. 
 
Mr. Whitlock approached Council stating that he has to have all the property in the same zone.  
He stated that he has had an existing subdivision and this is a realistic assessment of what it 
could be.   
 
Mrs. Wanda Thornton asked about the effects on the adjoining property.  She advised that during 
the Comprehensive Plan, it showed all of her adjoining property as part of the campground.  She 
stated that this doesn’t affect Mr. Whitlock as his subdivision is not for camper lots.  She advised 
she has researched this in Accomack.  She stated that this means that he can build houses.  She 
also stated this won’t solve the problem.   
 
Councilman T. Howard asked what would preclude someone from vacating the property line to 
utilize that parcel as a campground. 
 
Mrs. Thornton stated that by making her property C-4 Resort Commercial would include the 
same land that Redman & Johnson recommended in the Comprehensive Plan.  She asked why 
Pine Grove is treated different than any of the other campgrounds.  She requested that her 
property be zone just as the Comprehensive Plan states, which is the same as the other 
campgrounds on the island.   
 
Mrs. Flaningam stated that by keeping the area in question residential it will allow for many 
commercial uses.  She stated that people are concerned of their property value regarding 
commercial development.  She suggested finding another way to accommodate.  
 



Mayor Tarr reminded Council that when Maddox Campground came regarding the zoning of all 
their properties as C-4 as in all other campgrounds and one of their parcels wasn’t adjacent 
either.  He advised that he is comparing campgrounds and the allowances. 
 
There was discussion of the verbiage of the alternative option and keeping that area of Main 
Street in the R-2 district for a buffer.   
 
Councilman T. Howard motioned, seconded by Vice Mayor Richardson to adopt the 
Comprehensive Plan recommendation, except for the properties which front on Main Street 
which will be zoned R-2.  Unanimously approved. 
 
Issue: 

3. North Main Street zoning district boundaries 
A. R-2 Residential zoning 
Recommendation: No Change – Adopt the proposed zoning map as advertised at the 
Town Council public hearing. 
 

Town Planner Neville stated that this is what was just decided continuing the Residential along 
Main Street. 

 
Council agreed not to change what was advertised. 

 
B. C-3 Commercial zoning proposed by Town Plan 
Recommendation: No Change – Adopt the proposed zoning map as advertised at the 
Town Council public hearing. 

 
Town Planner Neville explained that this item was referring to the recommendation from the 
Comprehensive Plan that an additional 6 or 7 properties from the back side of Redman’s 
Cemetery from Taylor Street north toward Main Street be included in the C-3 district.   
 
There was brief discussion. 
 
Council decided not to change what was advertised. 
 

C. C-3 Commercial to R-2 zoning 
Recommendation: No change - Adopt the proposed zoning map as advertised at the 
Town Council public hearing. 

 
Town Planner Neville explained the request to possibly change the existing commercial zoning 
on the east side of Main Street almost to the high school to Residential.  He advised that the 
Planning Commission did not want to change those as this is a traditional value use.   
 
Council decided not to change what was advertised. 
 
 
 



Issue: 
4. Landowner requests/suggestions 

A. Rauth – Request to revise the R-3 zoning district regulations so that Public Piers and 
Boat Ramps would require special use permit approval. 
Recommendation: No Change – Adopt the proposed R-3 Mixed use Residential zoning 
district as advertised at the Town Council public hearing 

 
Town Planner Neville stated that the residents of Marsh Island would like to see the public piers 
and boat ramps still be permitted but under the special use permit category.  He stated that the 
Planning Commission decided that by making this change would change other properties also.  
 
Council decided not to change what was advertised. 
 

B. Ullmann – Request to include Redman Cemetery in the POS Parks and Open Space 
zoning district along with other cemetery parcels on the island. 
Recommendation: No Change – Adopt the proposed zoning map as advertised at the 
Town Council public hearing.  Consider this suggested as a possible update in the 
future after the Cemetery Committee has completed its mapping project. 

 
Town Planner Neville stated that there was a request to change the zoning of all cemeteries.  He 
advised that the Planning Commission decided not to address this issue at this point because of 
the remapping project.   
 
Council discussed the matter further and decided not to change what was advertised at this time.  
They agreed to address it when the remapping project was completed. 
 

C. Potts – Suggestion that the existing Fire House on the corner of Main Street and 
Cropper Street should be included in the proposed C-2 commercial district. 
Recommendation: Revise zoning map – Revise the proposed zoning map to include 
the existing fire house parcel in the C-2 Old Town Commercial zoning district.   

 
Town Planner Neville stated that the property is currently zoned R-3 Residential.  He stated that 
it works for the fire house today to be in a commercial district and the building is commercial.  
He stated that when they relocate, the property will be commercial.   
 
Councilman J. Howard motioned, seconded by Vice Mayor Richardson to change the zoning of 
the fire house to “Old Town” Commercial.  Unanimously approved. 
 

D. Conklin – Request that an existing seafood business/former barber shop building on 
Ridge Road to be included in the commercial zoning district. 
Recommendation: No Change – Adopt proposed zoning map as advertised at the 
Town Council public hearing. 

 
Town Planner Neville explained the past use of one business parcel on Ridge Road and stated 
that there was a suggestion that this parcel remain commercial.  He advised that the lot across the 



street is C-1 Commercial.  He stated that Council could review and issue a one-time special use 
permit.   
 
Mayor Tarr asked why it wouldn’t be grandfathered.   
 
There was discussion about the current use. 
 
Town Planner Neville advised that the Planning Commission recommended not changing what 
was advertised.  It is currently zoned R-3 Residential.   
 
Council decided not to change what was advertised. 
 

E. Meals/Seaman – Suggestion that existing subdivided lots on Bay Street currently in 
residential use should be included in the Resort Commercial District. 
Recommendation: Revise Zoning Map – Include the suggested change as a correction 
to the zoning map prior to adoption by the Town Council. 
 

Town Planner Neville explained the area south of Ocean Breeze.  He advised the proposed 
zones.  He added that the area would be down-zoned.  He suggested the zoning reflecting the 
current use.  He stated that the Planning Commission recommended that the lots should be 
corrected and included in the R-4 Residential Resort district.   
 
Town Manager Ritter stated that the lots were not 99 year leases, they were individually owned 
properties.   
 
There was discussion about part of this camper/mobile home park being commercial and the 
other part was residential and making the correction.  The property is currently C-1 Commercial.   
 
Mr. Tull explained the subdivision and stated it is a campground. 
 
Council agreed not to change what was advertised. 
 

F. Neeley – Suggestion that several parcels along the east end of Ocean Boulevard 
currently in residential use should be zoned to the R-2 district in order to preserve the 
residential character of the street.  Neeley – Suggestion that several parcels along the 
east end of Ocean Boulevard currently in residential use should be zoned to the R-2 
district in order to preserve the residential character of the street. 
Recommendation: No change – Adopt proposed zoning map as advertised at the 
Town Council public hearing. 

 
Town Planner Neville stated there are a few lots on the east end of Ocean Boulevard that are 
zoned Commercial.  There was a suggestion to make all of Ocean Boulevard Residential.  He 
stated that the Planning Commission recommended there be no change. 
 
Council decided not to change what was advertised. 
 



Town Planner Neville also reported that there was a question that had to do with the limits to the 
Town boundaries.  He showed the map of the Town boundaries.  He stated that there was an area 
owned by the National Park Service next to the Maryland line which was covered in the 
Resource Conservation District.  He stated that he was required to send a letter and notice to all 
adjacent jurisdictions.  There was a question as to why part of this area would be zoned in the 
Chincoteague boundaries.  He also advised that the Town limits go to the edge of Assateague 
Island.   
 
Mr. Donald Thornton asked about the islands on the Chincoteague Bay. 
 
Town Planner Neville stated some of them are considered Resource Conservation and others 
Aquaculture.  He advised Council that based on their direction he will make corrections to the 
Zoning Map.  He needs to make sure the map is correct and the motions to approve have all the 
wording that satisfies the State Code and the Town Attorney before final approval. 
 
There was brief discussion regarding the RT 175 right-of-way boundaries also.   
 
Mayor Tarr thanked Town Planner Neville and the Planning Commission for their hard work. 
 
4. Council Member Comments 
There were none. 
 
5. Closed Meeting in Accordance with Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) of the Code of Virginia. 

• Personnel Matters 
• Possible Litigation Concerning the Fire Tax 

Councilman T. Howard moved, seconded by Councilman Muth to convene a closed meeting under 
Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) of the Code of Virginia to discuss personnel matters. Unanimously 
approved. 
 
Councilwoman Conklin moved, seconded by Councilman T. Howard to reconvene in regular 
session.  Ayes- , T. Howard, J. Howard, Jester, Muth, Conklin Absent: Richardson 
 
Councilwoman Conklin moved, seconded by Councilman Jester to adopt a resolution of 
certification of the closed meeting.   
 
WHEREAS, the Chincoteague Town Council has convened a closed meeting on this date pursuant 
to an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by this Town 
Council that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chincoteague Town Council hereby certifies 
that to the best of each member's knowledge, (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the closed meeting to which this 



certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the 
motion convening the closed meeting were heard, discussed or considered by the Town Council. 
 
VOTE:  Ayes- , T. Howard, J. Howard, Jester, Muth, Conklin 
  Nays- None 
  Absent- Richardson 
 
Councilman T. Howard motioned, seconded by Councilman Muth to approve a change in the 
Employee Handbook, Position & Classification Table minimum salary range for the Director of 
planning position from $45,510.40/yr to $50,000/yr and the approximate 9 percent shift be the 
increase in the Director of Planning’s salary.  Motion carried. 
Ayes: T. Howard, Muth,  
Nays:  
Absent- Richardson 
 
Adjourn 
Councilman T. Howard motioned, seconded by Councilman Jester to adjourn.  Unanimously 
approved with Councilwoman Richardson Absent. 
 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
Mayor       Town Manager 
 
 


